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E THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

Baptist Chapel Church, set on a hill overlooking Helton Creek and the creek bottom 
farms of its parishioners, is one of the oldest church buildings in Ashe County and 
uniquely remains unchanged, as built in 1872 It is a simple one-story frame structure, 
covered by weatherboards and set on a common bond brick foundation. A center flue stack 
pierces the ridge line of the gable roof now covered with sheet tin.. The interior is a 
one room plan .. 

The sills of the church are faced witli a 'wide 'plank which is carried around the 
building: and provides base for pilasters, formed of single planks, set at the corners 
of the building which frame each elevation. Similarly, pilaster boards frame the two 
entrance bays on the front (north) gable .. Their simply molded, slightly projecting_ 
capitals support a frieze board which stretches across the -entrance front ru1d is carried 
under the eaves down the east and west sides of the church.. The wide eaves of the roof 
are flush sheathed. On the front elevation a board outlines the_ gable suggesting a 
pediment-.. 

The two entrances have four panel doors and each has a single-pane transom decorated 
with a jigsaw-cu·t frame formed of half circles and curved devices.. Each transom is sur­
mounted by a bracketed cornice to which is attached a pattern board sawn with alternating 
half-circles and triangles .. 

The east and west sides of the church are three bays deep, each bay being·marked by 
windows of four-over-four sash.. !1-ost of the glazing .is original The surrounds are 
made of plain unmolded boards which rise from t,he window sill and curve at the top to 
follow the- arc of the segmental arch-headed windows.. A few surrounds retain cornerblocks, 
the bottom of which are sawn in a scalloped-arch patt;ern.. The back (south) elevation 
lacks fenestration. 

The interior of the church follows a two-aisle plan, suggested by:the double 
entrances, and is very simply finished with flush horizontal sheathing. The ceiling is 
also sheathed. The most unusual feature of the church is the interior window surroundse 
Set on plain unmolded sills, the window surrounds have a broad, sawn, console-like base. 
The top of the window surrounds angles out and peaks at the corner, suggesting a "horned" 
device.. The door surrounds are also made of plain, unrnolded boards which rise to a wide 
lintel sawn in a curved and circular outline.. The pews are constructed of wide boards 
with single board width seats and backs.. The ends of the pews are attached directly to 
the wall. The center row of pews is free-standing and is connected by a narrow board 
laid perpendicularly across the tops of the backs at the center. At the front on each 
side two pews are set perpendicular to the outside rows and are probably intended for the 
choir. The pews are painted pale blue, as are the walls up to approximately thirty-four 
inches to give the illusion of a wainscot 

The pews face a lecturn which is centered on a raised platform with clipped corners 
There is no altar Cen·tered on the wall behind the lecturn thin plain boards are applied 
in a temple form outline suggesting a pedimented apse 

The cemetery enclosed in a wire fence adjacent to the church is well maintained and 
has a grass cover. 
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Baptist and Methodist congregations were the earliest organized in the New River 
Valley principally because they were the only denominations to send preachers as circuit 
riders to the settlers The Baptist Chapel Church is the oldest extant one in the New 
River Valley, but more remarkable is the fac·t that Jc has continued in use, unaltered, 
as built in 1872.,· '11he adjacent cemetery contains Lhe graves of nearby river-bottom 
,settlers and the builders of many houses in the area. 

The congreg·ation of Baptist Chapel Church was formally o:cganized on February 20, 
1842 and joined the Brier Creek Association later that year®l Whether or not this was 
the first missionary Baptist church west of the Blue Ridge as local tradition maintains, 
is still an open question.. According to Mr .. Theodore Blevins, whose family has lived 
near the church ·since its organization, a log s·tructure served the congregation m1.til 
Gus Mock (a local carpenter) built the pres~nt cht1rch in 1872., The log structure may 
have been built on Blevin land but no deed records involving the church have been found .. 
Apparently Baptist Chapel had no regular minister in the early years A lay preacher, 
Richard Jacks, conducted services at both Baptist Chapel and Liberty ChapeL. 2 

In 1848 Jacks, on behalf of six churches located west of the Blue Ridge, presented 
a petition to the Brier Creek Association ~equesting the formation of a separate associa­
tion. A committee studied the petition and on October 30, 1848 the Jefferson Association 
\vas created.. Member churches were Baptist Chapel Baptist Union, Liberty Chapel, Sugar 
Grove'Chapel, White Top, and Youngs Chapel 3 The Jefferson Association, like Brier 
Creek, was oriented toward a missionary program, which caused bitter feelings with stand 
pat Primitive Baptist churches in the area 4 

The controversy over missions, combined \vi th opposing views of slavery expansion and 
conflicting loyalties in the Civil War, ripped apart the Jefferson Association.. By 1870 
it had dissolved 5 Meanwhile, the Mountain Union Baptist Association had been organized 
in August, 1867 and Baptist Chapel entered ·this association during the post-war period. 6 

Initially Mountain Union Baptist Association was hostile to missions but later 
moderat.-::d its stance to noncomrnitment No money for such purposes \'las allocated to 
rnember churches 7 Even so Baptist Chapel apparently tried to continue its missionary­
prog-ram for some years though it seems to have existed more in -theory than in practice 
By the mid 1920s Baptist Chapel as a missionary church was extinct according to church 
records 0 

8 Still a member of ·the Mm_mtain Union Baptist AssociaJcion, Baptis·t Chapel has a 
fu.ll tirne min.;Lster and conducts regular services in the small church 
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